## RECEIVED COURT OF APPEALS DIVISION ONE

# **COURT OF APPEALS**

## **DIVISION 1**

JAN 03 2019

STATE OF WASINGTON

CASE #77209-1-1

96722-9

Michael Bracken, Rita Spencer aka LaRita Spencer, Appellants

٧.

James Merklinghaus, Respondent

CBURT OF AFFECUSERY STRIKE OF WASHINGTON

# MOTION FOR DESCRETIONARY REVIEW SUPREME COURT

Court of Appeals Reconsideration Filed on 12/4/18



JAN 0.3 2019

Page 1	Introduction
Page 1	Background and Argument
Page 2	Washington State and Federal Fair Housing Laws
Dogo 3	Canalysian

**Table of Content:**

#### Introduction:

The is a case of housing discrimination based on race, color and marital status. With proven evidence, the defendant was denied the opportunity to present evidence from the lower Superior Courts that in time provided solid evidence of discrimination.

### **Background and Argument:**

Intentional interference and unethical practices within the lower Superior Court and Appellant Courts.

- During a hearing in the lower Superior Courts Judge Schubert tossed papers at me and during the same hearing Judge Schubert said to me "It's not my fault you weren't born white" (I've recently reported these concerns to the FBI)
- The Plaintiff's attorney Scott Hildebrand has intentionally manipulated, harassed and sought unethical favors from other attorneys including Judges, Commissioners and presumably the administrative court approved transcriptionist and some staff members of the Appellant Courts.
  - o In November, I attended an Ex Parte summons by Scott Hildebrand the subject was Increase in Bond. The Plaintiffs request was granted with prejudice. On the same day, I reviewed the Superior Court records data base, I discovered a Judgement issued in May of 2018. The Judgement was signed by Commissioner Judson. In a text data chat, I informed the Plaintiff's attorney Scott Hildebrand of my discovery.
    - 1. I informed Scott Hildebrand of my request for review regarding the increase in bond.
    - 2. The following day, I presented a request for "Review" on the increase in bond signed by a Commissioner and I opted to have the courts call me to pick up the Reviewed opinion.
    - 3. The opinion was NOT in response to my documented request but instead a denial of Review regarding the May 2018 Judgement signed by the same Commissioner who entered the Judgement... Commissioner Judson. I am confident Commissioner Judson received a request from Scott Hildebrand to first off "Review" his own work and secondly it interrupted the process for the requested Review that was time sensitive and created additional pain, suffering and emotional hardship.



JAN 0.3 2010

Washington State Fair Housing Laws:

The Civil Rights Act of 1866 guaranteed property rights to all, regardless of race. It was another hundred years before any real change in fair housing came about, with the passage of the federal Fair Housing Act — Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, which added color, national origin, religion and sex. The Fair Housing Act represented the culmination of years of congressional consideration of housing discrimination legislation. Its legislative history spanned the urban riots of 1967, the release of the Report of the National Advisory Commission on Civil Disorders (the Kerner Commission Report, which concluded that America was moving toward two societies, separate and unequal), and the assassination of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr.

1. What fair housing laws apply in Washington state and who enforces them?

The federal Fair Housing Act and its 1988 amendments (FHA) protect people from

negative housing actions that occur because of their race, color, national origin,

religion, sex, disability, or family status, which are "protected classes" under the FHA.

State and local fair housing laws cover additional groups, such as marital status.

sexual orientation, gender identity, age, participation in the Section 8 Program,

veterans/military, etc

COURT OF APPEALS DIVISION ONE

JAN 0.3 2019

#### Conclusion:

The examples provided are just a few of many unethical incidents that has interfered with our ability to have a fair hearing and review within the Superior and Appellant Courts.

It is impossible for the Appellant Courts to provide a fair and honest review without providing a fair opportunity to hear a balanced argument from both sides. The Appellant Defendant intentionally manipulated the procedural process in both the Superior and Appellant Courts to conceal the corrupt unethical practices and data reoccurring in both court systems.

The Appellant Court errored in their decision to conclude on a cause based on the final argument of the Appellant Respondent with prejudice not allowing a rebuttal of time to review all data for unbiased consideration from the higher courts.

RECEIVED COURT OF APPEALS DIVISION ONE

JAN 0.3 2019

#### **COURT OF APPEALS**

#### **DIVISION 1**

## **STATE OF WASINGTON**

CASE #77209-1-1

Michael Bracken, Rita Spencer aka LaRita Spencer, Appellants

٧.

James Merklinghaus, Respondent