### **DIVISION 1**

#### STATE OF WASHINGTON

CASE #77209-1-I

Michael Bracken, Rita Spencer aka LaRita Spencer, Appellants

v.

James Merklinghaus, Respondent

#### RESPONDENT'S ANSWER TO APPELLANTS' PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW

Attorney for Respondent:

Scott Hildebrand

3020 Issaquah-Pine Lake Rd, #304

Sammamish, WA 98075

(206) 605-8874

Appellants, Pro Se

Michael Bracken, LaRita Spencer

419 99th Ave, Unit C

Bellevue, WA 98004

(503) 621-6011 or (503) 621-6213

FILED STATE OF VASHINGTON

Michael Bracken, Rita Spencer AKA LaRita Spencer, Appellants v James Merklinghaus, Respondent

2

#### **

#### INTRODUCTION

Appellants entered into a one-year lease agreement with Respondent to rent premises known as 417 99<sup>th</sup> Ave NE #C, Bellevue, Washington 98004 on or about April 1, 2013. The lease expired on March 31, 2014, making appellants month-to-month tenants.

On June 8, 2017, Respondent caused a 20 day notice to terminate tenancy to be served on Appellants- their tenancy was to expire June 30, 2017.

Michael Bracken, Rita Spencer AKA LaRita Spencer, Appellants v James Merklinghaus, Respondent

۱ 3

On July 19, 2017 an order for alternative service was secured by Respondent and a summons and complaint were served by posting and mailing on July 21, 2017.

A show cause hearing took place on July 31, 2017 where Appellants appeared and argued. Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, Judgment and Order Granting Writ was executed by Judge Ken Schubert and a writ of restitution was issued.

Appellants subsequently filed documents appealing the decision of the Superior Court. The first brief filed by the Appellants was rejected; the second, filed on February 20, 2018, was accepted.

On November 19, 2018 the Court of Appeals issued an unpublished opinion finding no error with the decision made in the Superior Court. In its decision, the Appellate panel stated, "Finding no error, we affirm." See Appendix A

On January 3, 2018 the Appellants filed a Petition for Discretionary Review in this matter to the Supreme Court of Washington.

#### STATEMENT OF CASE

Appellants executed a one-year lease at premises commonly known as 417 99<sup>th</sup> Ave NE, Bellevue, King County, Washington 98004

Michael Bracken, Rita Spencer AKA LaRita Spencer, Appellants v James Merklinghaus, Respondent

4

with James Merklinghaus, owner of the premises on April 1, 2013. The lease expired by its terms on March 31, 2014. The lease stated, "This agreement shall be month to month beginning April 1<sup>st</sup>, 2014, or a new lease to be started." (CP at 52-56)

The lease expired by its own terms on March 31, 2014 and no subsequent lease was executed, nor was a fully executed lease document ever produced by Appellants.

On June 8, 2017 a 20 Day Notice to Vacate was served on Appellants by posting and mailing, evidence of which is included in the record. The 20 Day Notice stated that tenancy was to terminate on June 30, 2017. (CP at 80-82)

Upon the discovery that Appellants had not vacated the property on the date required by the 20 day notice, Respondent filed a summons and complaint with the King County Clerk's office on July 6, 2017 as case number 17-2-17606-1 SEA. (CP at 1-18, 88-98)

Respondent sought and was granted an order for hearing to show cause for July 18, 2017 (CP at 19-21; 46-47; 99-100)

Respondent attempted service of the summons and complaint and the order to show cause on numerous occasions without success.

Michael Bracken, Rita Spencer AKA LaRita Spencer, Appellants v James Merklinghaus, Respondent

5

Declaration of Due Diligence by the process server cited four separate occasions on which service was attempted, but not completed. The declarant stated, "...on July 10 attempt the blinds were moving and fingers visible in between the blinds." (CP at 24-25)

Respondent petitioned the court for alternative service via motion and an order for alternative service was granted on July 17, 2017. (CP at 22-27; 83-84)

Respondent sought a new order to show cause, and was granted a hearing date of July 31, 2017. (CP at 28-31; 85-87)

On July 21, 2018 Appellant was served with a summons and complaint, as well as the order to show cause on July 31, 2017. (CP at 33, 1.7)

On July 31, 2018 a show cause hearing was conducted before Judge Ken Schubert. Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law; Judgment and Order Granting Writ was executed by Judge Schubert after hearing. (CP at 32-45) A writ of restitution was granted and Respondent filed the writ with the King County Sheriff's office for execution.

On July 31, 2017 Appellants filed a Notice of Appeal with the King County Clerk. (CP at 36-41)

Michael Bracken, Rita Spencer AKA LaRita Spencer, Appellants v James Merklinghaus, Respondent

6

On July 31, 2017 the Appellants paid the filing fee to appeal. (CP at 49)

On August 1, 2017 Appellants filed a "Response" to the order to show cause alleging "a clear violation of Landlord Tenant rights, acts and laws..." (CP at 48, 51)

On August 3, 2017 Appellants moved the court to stay enforcement of the writ of restitution issued on July 31, 2017. In their motion, Appellants allege that the eviction was racially motivated, that the plaintiff and their counsel had intentionally misled them, and that certain items were not disclosed by the plaintiff and/or their attorney.(CP at 130-133) The motion to stay was granted pending the posting of a \$14,700 bond. (CP at 135)

On August 11, 2017 Appellants posted a bond in the amount of \$14,700 and successfully stayed the writ of restitution. (CP at 143)

The Appellants posted two subsequent bonds to stay execution of a Writ of Restitution.

The Court of Appeals, Division I subsequently affirmed the decision of the Superior Court finding the Appellants in Unlawful Detainer and granting Respondent a Writ of Restitution. See Appendix A

Michael Bracken, Rita Spencer AKA LaRita Spencer, Appellants v James Merklinghaus, Respondent

7

On January 3, 2019, Appellant filed a Petition for Discretionary Review to the Washington Supreme Court.

#### ARGUMENT

## I. APPELLANTS' REQUEST FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW DOES NOT CONFORM WITH RAP 13.4(b)

Washington Rules of Appellate Procedure 13.4(b) states, in relevant

part, "A petition for review will be accepted by the Supreme Court only:

(1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court; or (2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a published decision of the Court of Appeals; or (3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is involved; or (4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court." Washington Rules of Appellate Procedure, 13.4(b)

Here, Appellants state, "The (sic) is a case of housing discrimination based on race, color and marital status." *Appellant's Petition for Review*, p.1

Michael Bracken, Rita Spencer AKA LaRita Spencer, Appellants v James Merklinghaus, Respondent

8

Further, Appellants recite a series of facts alleging *ex parte* contact by Appellant's counsel with the court in an effort to secure a favorable decision. *Id.* Aside from this bald accusation, the Appellant provides no factual background nor any specific laws, Appellate decisions or public policies on which the decision by the Court of Appeals should be heard by the Supreme Court, according to *RAP* 13.4(b).

Although the Appellants cite The Civil Rights Act of 1866 and the Federal Fair Housing Act generally, there is no allegation made by the Appellants that the Court of Appeals erred in affirming the decision of the Superior Court, or that either of those two bodies of law were violated by the actions of the Superior Court, its officers or the Respondent or his attorney. *Appellants' Petition*, p. 2

In their conclusion, the Appellants state, "The Appellant Defendant intentionally manipulated the procedural process in both the Superior and Appellant Courts to conceal the corrupt unethical practices and data reoccurring in both court systems. *Id* p.3

Again, in their conclusion, the Appellant offers nothing more than unsupported assertions of manipulation and abusive practices and offers

Michael Bracken, Rita Spencer AKA LaRita Spencer, Appellants v James Merklinghaus, Respondent

9

nothing in the way of concrete evidence, much less an argument as to how those practices violate any federal or state law.

#### CONCLUSION

As is stated above, the Appellant was properly served all documents pursuant to an unlawful detainer, was heard in a show cause hearing and had a writ of restitution issued for recovery of the premises in which they resided.

The Appellants have made no allegation consistent with the standard set forth in *RAP* 13.4(b) for the granting of Discretionary Review, by the Supreme Court.

It is for these reasons that the Respondent respectfully requests that the Court deny the Appellants their request for Discretionary Review of the decision by the Court of Appeals in this matter.